
Saline County Library  

Board of Trustees 

Agenda 

Date:  19 November 2024 | Time:  4:00 PM 

1800 Smithers, Benton, AR 

 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Announcements 

3. Public Comment - Speakers must complete the Request to Speak Before the Board form and 
have it turned into the Library Director or any Board Member by noon of the day of the board 
meeting. 

4. Minutes from the 14 October 2024 board meeting  

5. Financial Reports 

a. Income and Expense Reports 

b. Budget Modifications 

6. Discussion Items 

a. Director’s Report 

b. Library Management Team Reports 

c. Circulation Statistics 2024 

7. Unfinished Business 

a. Review of Policies 

b. RFQ for Auditing Services 

c. New Board Member Selection 

8. New Business 

a. Approving Exempt Positions 

b. Review Section VI of Board Bylaws 

Adjourn 

Next regular board meeting 13 January 2025 



REQUEST TO SPEAK BEFORE THE BOARD 
  

Please complete this form and return it to either a Board Member or the Library Director.   

Name_____________________________________ Date_________________________   

Address_________________________________________________________________   

City, State and ZIP___________________________ Phone_______________________   

Subject of your request_____________________________________________________   

 

 

 

 

Email address____________________________________________________________  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REQUEST TO SPEAK BEFORE THE BOARD 
  

Please complete this form and return it to either a Board Member or the Library Director.   

Name_____________________________________ Date_________________________   

Address_________________________________________________________________   

City, State and ZIP___________________________ Phone_______________________   

Subject of your request_____________________________________________________   

 

 

 

 

Email address____________________________________________________________  

 



 

 

Saline County Library Board of Trustees 

Meeting Minutes 

14 October 2024  

 
 

1. Call to Order 
Douglas called the meeting to order at 4:02 PM 

2. Announcements 

3. Public Comment 
No public comment made. 

4. Minutes from the 16 September 2024 board meeting  
Cemmer motioned to approve. Conrad seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 

5. Financial Reports 

a. Income and Expense Reports 
Conrad motioned to accept the reports as presented. McKeown seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously. 

6. Unfinished Business 

a. Review of Collection Development Policy 
Clemmer moved to strike the summary section for the Reconsideration of 
Materials policy as such summaries do not exist for any other policies. McKeown 
seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 

b. RFQ for Auditing Services 
Espey will follow up with potential firm on Wednesday, October 16 

c. New Board Member Selection 
Judge Brumley will present the name of his chosen appointee to the Quorum 
Court at the personnel committee meeting on November 4, and the appointment 
will be confirmed at the Quorum Court regular meeting on November 18. 

d. 2025 Budget 
McKeown motioned to submit the budget as presented to the Quorum Court with 
the understanding that the COLA for the library personnel budget will align with 
what the Quorum Court approves for all county employees. Clemmer seconded 
the motion which passed unanimously. 



 

 

During budget discussion, the board was made aware of the need to update 
library facilities to ensure ADA compliance. The board asked for an update of the 
evaluation and plan for this at the next board meeting. 

7. New Business 

a. New Meeting Day for Regular Meeting 
The board chose to hold regular meetings on the second Monday of the regular 
meeting month so as not to interfere with the regular Quorum Court meeting 
which is held on the third Monday of each month. 

 

 

Adjourn 5:53 PM 
 McKeown motioned to adjourn. Conrad seconded the motion which passed 

unanimously. 
 
 

Next regular board meeting 19 November 2024 









Date Amount
12/31/2023 $3,988,523.18

1/31/2024 $3,928,702.24
2/29/2024 $4,068,608.86
3/29/2024 $3,871,110.95
4/30/2024 $3,650,184.64
5/31/2024 $3,221,258.50
6/30/2024 $4,567,448.39
7/31/2024 $4,247,331.46
8/31/2024 $4,193,222.43
9/30/2024 $3,793,736.36

10/31/2024 $3,646,948.57
11/30/2024
12/29/2024

First Security Bank Statement Ending Balance

$0.00
$500,000.00

$1,000,000.00
$1,500,000.00
$2,000,000.00
$2,500,000.00
$3,000,000.00
$3,500,000.00
$4,000,000.00
$4,500,000.00
$5,000,000.00

First Security Bank Statement Ending Balance 



Date County Received 2019 Amount 2020 Amount 2021 Amount 2022 Amount 2023 Amount 2024 Amount
Difference from 
previous year

December 223,260.30$         226,160.06$         240,643.86$         259,054.60$         236,663.60$         281,506.20$        44,842.60$           

January 179,970.58$         226,867.53$         248,875.25$         297,724.41$         244,107.88$         444,981.53$        200,873.65$         

February 48,016.39$           90,322.15$           92,793.73$           60,717.21$           82,586.40$           80,329.09$          (2,257.31)$            

March 80,638.08$           48,354.20$           47,554.84$           93,532.72$           111,487.75$         42,763.71$          (68,724.04)$          

April 216,460.61$         237,069.35$         156,340.43$         201,091.45$         297,178.59$         334,571.00$        37,392.41$           

May 1,034,761.23$      996,484.34$         1,185,278.48$      1,164,224.26$      430,942.96$         1,335,255.50$     904,312.54$         

June 109,521.49$         110,896.95$         92,488.78$           89,291.29$           970,451.41$         102,423.53$        (868,027.88)$        

July 85,858.74$           94,694.02$           85,193.59$           87,308.16$           98,906.02$           94,044.59$          (4,861.43)$            

August 55,219.40$           60,399.71$           63,259.14$           80,324.03$           70,538.64$           82,464.89$          11,926.25$           

September 75,295.84$           63,533.38$           93,021.74$           91,590.17$           126,267.33$         109,242.37$        (17,024.96)$          

October 270,902.00$         275,110.88$         316,655.67$         277,262.72$         275,584.60$         310,411.13$        34,826.53$           

November 738,120.29$         737,493.81$         666,438.79$         757,940.44$         868,873.55$         (868,873.55)$        

3,118,024.95$      3,167,386.38$      3,288,544.30$      3,460,061.46$      3,813,588.73$      3,217,993.54$     (595,595.19)$        

TAX RECEIPTS

 $-

 $200,000.00

 $400,000.00

 $600,000.00

 $800,000.00

 $1,000,000.00

 $1,200,000.00

 $1,400,000.00

 $1,600,000.00

December January February March April May June July August September October November

2019 Amount 2020 Amount 2021 Amount 2022 Amount 2023 Amount 2024 Amount



Date: 15-Nov-24

Line Item Description Original Budget Current Budget Current Expenses Current Balance Budget Revision New Appropriation New Balance

-$                      -$                           -$                  
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      
-$                      

-$                      
Line Item Description Original Budget Current Budget Current Expenses Current Balance Budget Revision New Appropriation New Balance

7900 Meals and Lodging 4,000.00$            4,000.00$           6,082.25$               (2,082.25)$           2,082.25$             6,082.25$                  -$                  
8700 Staff Development 6,000.00$           16,200.00$        11,235.17$            4,964.83$            (2,082.25)$           14,117.75$                2,882.58$        
0600 Taxes (Fed, AR, SUTA) 130,000.00$       130,000.00$       132,960.92$           (2,960.92)$           54,000.00$           184,000.00$             51,039.08$      
9100 Building and Furnishings 402,000.00$      287,000.00$      62,817.09$            224,182.91$        (54,000.00)$        233,000.00$             170,182.91$    
70-5200 Fuel for Personal Vehicle Use 2,000.00$            2,000.00$           2,252.33$               (252.33)$              1,000.00$             3,000.00$                  747.67$           
9500 Other Miscellaneous Expenditure 101,075.50$      25,875.50$        -$                        25,875.50$          (1,000.00)$           24,875.50$                24,875.50$      
71-5800 Fire and Extended Coverage 30,000.00$         30,000.00$         36,661.00$             (6,661.00)$           6,661.00$             36,661.00$                -$                  
9500 Other Miscellaneous Expenditure 101,075.50$      24,875.50$        -$                        24,875.50$          (6,661.00)$           18,214.50$                18,214.50$      
6800 Other Professional Services 5,000.00$            5,000.00$           5,660.84$               (660.84)$              1,000.00$             6,000.00$                  339.16$           
9500 Other Miscellaneous Expenditure 101,075.50$      18,214.50$        -$                        18,214.50$          (1,000.00)$           17,214.50$                17,214.50$      
9300 Machinery and Equipment 69,000.00$         169,000.00$       156,404.80$           12,595.20$          70,000.00$           239,000.00$             82,595.20$      
9100 Building and Furnishings 402,000.00$      233,000.00$      62,817.09$            170,182.91$        (70,000.00)$        163,000.00$             100,182.91$    

-$                      -$                           -$                  
-$                      -$                           -$                  
-$                      -$                           -$                  
-$                      -$                           -$                  

-$                      

B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 

Saline County Library Board
2024 Budget Modification Form

Prepared By: Arielle Wilson

O
T
H
E
R
 
I
N
C
O
M
E







Library Management Team Report 
Building Operations Department 

November 2024 
 

Building Operations Department 

 

IT 

For the most part, the IT department maintained the network and all associated equipment with 

only one issue toward the end of October. There was a hardware failure in one of our network 

switches, which was corrected within eight hours of the failure. 

Geoff also helped get the office move in Bryant complete and successfully brought LPT:One, 

our public printing service, online in Bryant. Geoff has done a wonderful job at staying abreast of 

the day-to-day IT issues while also getting these big projects completed. 

Maintenance/Housekeeping 

We had the Azalea bushes and shrubbery at the front of our Benton location torn out to make 

way for various future gardening and landscaping projects. Billy also addressed lighting issues 

around the library, while tending to the daily needs of the organization. He consistently went 

above and beyond to meet the maintenance needs of our properties. 

Brittion and Tatiana have each kept their buildings clean and presentable for staff and patrons, 

alike. Since moving Tatiana to Bryant full-time in May, she and Brittion have taken to their 

responsibilities and have made each building their own, respectively. They do a fantastic job 

and deserve every bit of praise that they get. 

Submitted by, 
Rob Walton 
Building Operations Manager 





Library Management Team Report 
Public Relations Department 

November 2024 
 

Social Media Stats 

Website Stats 

Public Attendance and Outreach Stats 

Library Card Sign Up Month 2024 Stats 

Number of people in our buildings: 17,383  
Number of items checked out or renewed: 27,007  
Number of website views: 3.2 Million  
Instagram Reach: 10,039  
Facebook Reach: 273,641  
Number of e-newsletter reads:15,633  
Number of library card renewals: 369  
Number of new library card sign ups: 710  



Announcements 

Submitted by,

Kari Lapp 
Public Relations Manager 



Library Management Team Report 
Youth Services 
November 2024 

 

Trunk or Treat 

The Saturday before Halloween, our department (along with Rob from building Operations, 

Bella from Public Relations, and Tierney and Joel from Adult Services) put on a trunk or treat in 

Bryant.  We moved the event to Benton this year so we would have more room inside in case of 

rain, but we had beautiful weather and 379 people came out to trick or treat and play games 

with us.  107 people attended the Halloween storytime before the games started. 

Programs & Outreach 

In September and October, members of the youth services department saw over 1,500 kids at 

outreach visits and events.  During this time, we had over 1000 people attend storytimes, and 

over 800 at homeschool programs.  Our afterschool programs have also been very well 

attended.  We have had around 670 kids attend programs after school. 

Library Council Elections 

This year we held our first ever Library Council elections.  Each branch chose 2 pairs of 

children’s book characters to run for Library Council.  We made campaign posters and 

yard signs to put up around the libraries.  Early voting began on October 21, and voting 

continued until November 5.  Everyone who voted got an “I Voted” sticker just like in 

real elections.  In Benton, our book display focused on the books featuring the 

candidates and books about how elections work and our government.  The winners 

were: Pigeon and the Very Impatient Caterpillar in Benton, Winnie the Pooh and 

Corduroy in Bryant, and Elephant and Piggie in East End.  Over 160 people voted in our 

election. 

 

Winter Reading Bingo Challenge 

Our winter reading challenge this year runs from November 25 through January 31.  Children 18 

and under have four opportunities to win a prize.  After 15 days of reading, they will get to 

choose a book from our prize cart.  For each additional 15 days they read during the challenge, 

they can pick a prize from the prize box.  Adults will have 3 challenges to choose from: reading, 

watching, and writing.  Each program has the same prizes, and adults may participate in as 

many of the challenges as they choose.  The program runs from November 25 through January 

31. We sent out information to all of the local schools, and will be promoting the challenge on 

social media as well. 

 

Submitted by, 



Wendy Christy 
Youth Services Manager 



Library Management Team Report 

Bryant Branch 

November 2024   

 

Statistics 

During September, the public computers were used 704 times for a total of 346 hours with an 

average of 29.5 minutes for each session.  We had 5,194 patrons visit with a daily average of 

216 visitors. We notarized 73 documents and submitted 34 passport applications. We 

circulated 6,946 items, which is a 4.2% decrease over 2023 (7,254).   

In October, the public computers were used 713 times for a total of 388 hours with an average 

of 32.6 minutes for each session. 6,125 patrons visited the branch with an average of 235 

patrons per day. We notarized 47 documents and submitted 56 passport applications.  We 

circulated 7,024 items which is a 3.6% decrease over 2023 (7,289).  

Staffing Report 

In October, Anna Wagnon accepted an internal position in Technical Services.  We promoted 

our part-time library assistant, Chloe Lee, to full-time and have an opening for a part-timer.   

 

 Reference 

Questions 

asked 

General 

Questions 

asked 

Digital 

material 

Questions 

Public 

Computer 

Questions 

Passport Calls 

July & August 281 274 126 255 267 

September 140 117 99 146 69 

October 121 128 72 91 75 

November      

December      

 

 

Submitted by, 

 

Susan Jacobs 

Branch Manager 

 

 



 
 

The Benton Makerspace saw 473 patrons during September and October. 

The Bryant Makerspace saw a marked decrease in patronage due to a change in open hours which seemingly 

did not match with patron availability; and a closure of the space for an extended period due to an infiltration by 

stinging insects. It has since reopened, and we are looking at restructuring our approach there to better utilize 

the space and better meet our patrons’ usage needs.

Programming 

Health-focused  

Tai Chi has a devoted core patronage and is continually enticing new patrons to try it out. In October, we 

added a weekly Pilates class to our health programming, and it is slowly gaining a following. 

Creation-focused  

Our creation-focused programs such as Adult Craft Hour, Adventures in Making, Adult Art Studio, and Family 

Fun Hour are a huge hit with our patrons. Each program is regularly filled to capacity. 

Information-focused 

Despite the highly informational and engaging presentations created by Cody Berry, History Talks is still trying 

to find its footing. We will continue to promote this program and others like it because we believe the local 

history audience is out there. 

Socialization-focused 

One of the big goals of the Adult Services Department is to address the growing loneliness crisis. With that in 

mind, we created programs like Quiet Cafe and Inklings which both have a steady patron base. Our newer 

book clubs are gaining in popularity while our older offerings are maintaining their patronage. Other 

socialization-focused programs like Chess Day, Classic Games, and Stitches and Cozy TV Mysteries are still 

struggling to find their place in our offerings. 

 September October 

In Person 139 245 

Makerspace Benton 254 219 

Makerspace Bryant 9 1 

Presenter 16 39 


	Binder2.pdf
	Request to Speak Before the Board.pdf
	Director's Report.pdf

	11.19.24 Board Packet.pdf
	11.19.24 Board Packet.pdf
	Agenda 11.19.24.pdf
	Board Meeting Minutes 10.14.24.pdf
	Budget vs Actuals as of 14 Nov 2024.pdf
	Bank Balance as of 31 Oct 2024.pdf
	Budget Modification Request 15 Nov 2024.pdf
	BOPs Board Report November 2024.pdf
	East End Board Report November 2024.pdf
	PR Department Board Report 11132024.pdf
	YS board report.pdf
	LMT Report Assistant Library Director November 2024.pdf
	2024 11 Bryant Manager Report.pdf
	AS LMT Report 20241112.pdf

	Tax Receipts as of 14 Nov 2024.pdf




